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L KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT

i. Background information

The institution was established under the TVET Act/2013 Act in 2020.The entity is domiciled in Kenya
and has no branches. The institute is under the Ministry of Education, State Department of Technical and
Vocational Training, Department of Technical Education.

Ikutha Technical and Vocational College is situated along Kibwezi - Kitui road, 5KM from Ikutha Town.
The College sits on a l0-acre piece of land and is in a predominantly semi-arid region. The college was
established by the Government of Kenya and the collaboration of NG-CDF Kitui South constituency in
2020.
The College has four (4) academic departments, namely Electrical Electronics, Mechanical Engineering,
Business Studies and Information and Communication Technology departments. The college offers a
variety of courses to K.C.P.E and K.C.S.E graduates at Artisan, Craft,and Diploma levels. The courses
offered are examined by KNEC, NITA and CDACC. Currently, the Institute has 7 PSC and l0 BOG
trainers with student population of 103 students, who are all commuters.

The Institution is run on day-to-day basis by a Principal who is appointed by the CS, Ministry of Education
under the State department Vocational and Technical Training. The College is managed by a Board of
Governors (BOG), appointed by the Cabinet Secretary, Ministry of Education as stipulated by the TVET
Act (January,2013). Responsibilities of the Board of Governors include recruitment of support staff,
overseeing financial management, upholding of staff and student discipline, maintenance of infrastructure
& other assets, and sourcing for finances.

ii. Principal ActivitiesVision

To be a leading college offering care€r focused training that equips its graduates to visualize andachieve
excellence award in the dynamic global community

Mission

To offer transformative training for the production of competent, committed and competitivegraduates to
the market

Core Values
l. Professionalism
2. Integrity
3. Teamwork.
4. Accountability
5, Innovativeness
6. Equity

Core Functions
Training, Innovation and Research in business and technical skills

CORE OBJECTTVES
To upgrade on infrastructure and facilities.a
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o To acquire and use modern ICT in training and service delivery.

o To promote linkages with other colleges and industries.

o To promote Training, Research and Development.

o To inprove Marketing of the Institute and its prograrnmes.

o 
. 
To enhance human resource development.

'' To enhance funds mobilization to shengthen the financial capacity of the Institution.

Key Management

The college's day-to-day management is under the following key organs:

1. The Principal
2. Ag. Deputy Principal
3. Ag. Registrar
4. Ag. Deans of Students
5. Accountant
6. Heads of Departments

iv. Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who.held oflice during the financial year ended 30th June202l and
who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

y. Fiduciary Oversight Arrengements

1. Budget and Procurement Committee of the BOG
The Committee shall exercise all the powers of Board of Governors in financial matters except in relation to tht
items which are reserved to Board of Governors in these Standing Orders, on whichthe Committee shall advise
Board of Governors.

Terms of Reference
The role of the Committee shall be to monitor the financial status of the college on behalf of Boardof
Governors. In addition to advising Board of Governors on those matters referred to above, the Committee's
responsibilities shall include:

a) To monitor and facilitate the implementation of the College's strategy with regard tofinancial
matters.

b) To receive reports from the Principal and the Accountant
c) To determine the fees and charges made for College services and facilities.
d) To supervise the financial administration of the College and make recommendations toBoard of

Govemors where appropriate

I Principal Eric Muendo Kilonzo
2 Deputy principal Dickson Giconi Kivindu
4 Registrar Nelson Sirhero Kimu ngui
5 Dean of students KimaniJoseph M

lv
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e) To supervise the arrangements for safeguarding the College's assets.

f) To ensure the proper financial evaluation and control of projects.

c) To supervise the arrangements for investing the College's funds, including monitoring theperformance
of investments.

h) To ensure the appropriate exploitation of the College's intellectual property.
i) To make recommendations to Board of Governors on the financing of projects.
j) To supervise the effective and efficient procurement and use of resources in accordancewith the

objectives of the Institute.
k) To supervise the College's purchasing procedures and practices.
l) To submit an annual statement on its activities to Board of Governors.
m) To keep under review the activities of the College's various departments.

2. Academic Committee Activities
The academic committee of the Board is entiusted with the following roles and functions:

a. To satisS itself regarding the content and academic standard of any course of study in respect of any
diploma, certificate or other award and to report its findings thereon to the Board.

b. To propose regulation for consideration by the Board regarding the eligibility of personsfor admission
to a course of study,

c. To propose regulations for consideration by the Board regarding the standard of proficiency to be

gained in each examination for a Diploma, certificate or other award.

d. To approve programs of study, regulate admission of persons to lkutha TVC anddetermine their
continuation or discontinuation in such programs.

e. To determine the Academic policy of Ikutha TVC and to advise the Board on the provisionof facilities
to carry out that policy,

f. To direct and regulate the training and instruction within the College subject to the powersof the Board.

3. Senior Management Committee Actiyities
The main purpose of the Senior Management Team is to:

, 1) Ensure that Ikutha TVC's Board of Governors is able to take strategic decisions relating to Ikutha
TVC's activities

2) Provide leadership in communicating Ikutha TVC's mission, values, plans and achievements effectively
and consistently to Board of Governors Members, stafi Government, the voluntary and community
sector, the general public and otherstakeholders;

3) Be accountable for the development and implementation of Ikutha TVC strategic, corporate and
business plans in line with the mission and values (strategic plan formulationin progress)

4) Take a strategic overview of performance in all areas of Ikutha TVC's activities, specifically the Senior
Management Team:

l) Makes recommendations to the board on the implementation and achievement of the Boardof
Governors' Strategic Framework;

2) Agrees to Ikutha TVC's Corporate Plan, and monitor delivery through appropriate key management and
performance information reporting to the Board of Governors as appropriate.

3) In the light of income projections and forecasts, considers the annual grants and operational expenditure
and monitors such expenditure;

4) Develops, agrees, monitors and reviews strategies relevant to the effective and efficient operation of
Ikutha TVC, making recommendations as appropriate to the Board of Governors and/or its relevant
Committees;

5) Determines strategic issues arising from the introduction of new policies or process, including actively
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managing risk across the organization and regularly reviewing the corporate risk register
6) Oversees and monitors Ikutha TVC's joint work with the other stakeholders
7) Considers the impact of external factors and developments, including specific political initiatives and tb

response to key consultation documents and where appropriate make recommendations to the Board of
Governors and/or its relevant Committees.

8) Leads all senior managers in motivating and developing Ikutha TVC staff to deliver the highest
standards of performance and customer service.

4. Risk and Audit Committee Activities

i. Governancelnitiatives:
Review and provide oversight on governance initiatives established by the BOG andmaintained
by the organization.

ii. Risk Management:
Review and provide oversight on the establishment, implementation, maintenance, andeffectiveness
of risk assessment, risk management, and risk reporting practices.

iii. Internal Control Framework:
Review and provide oversight on the organization's internal control framework. Keep informed on all
significant matters arising from work performed by any governance, risk,and control assurance
providers.

iv. Audit Activity:
Approve and periodically review the organizational audit policy. Review and approve aninternal audit
plan. The audit plan should be risk-based and supported by appropriate riskassessments.

v. Follow u1i on Management Actibn Plans:
The audit committee shall review regular reports on implementation status of approvedmanagement
action plans resulting from prior internal audit recommendations.

vi. Financial Statements and Public Accountability Reporting:
The audit committee shall review and provide advice to the BOG on the key financialmanagement
and performance reports and disclosurls issued to the public.

vt
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KEY ENTITY INFORMATION AND MANAGEMENT (Continued)

vi. EntityHeadquarters

P.O. Box 14-90207
IKUTHA
Kibwezi -Kitui
Road, XB.iU{.

Yii. Entity Contacts

Telephone : (25 4\ 7 9 80021 48
E-mail : ikuthatvc@gmail. com
Website : ikuthatvc. ac.ke

viii. Entity Bankers

Kenya commercial Bank
Wote Branch, Kenya

ix. IndependentAuditors

Auditor General
Oflice of Auditor Gene.tal
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

x. Principal Legal Adviser

The Attorney General
State Law Offrce
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 4011,2

City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

vll
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II. THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

Name Title Photogreph

Date of Birth, Key Qualilications and Work
Experience
Responsibility Dete of Birth &

Qualilications, Experience

l. Mr. Francis
K. Muthoka

Chairman Ovcrall
Managernent of the
Board Activities.

Dete of Birth -1958
Kev Ouelificedons
Holds a Masters of Busincss
Administratim.
VYork emerience- 22 veers
Christian Reformed Relief
Cornmittee & Ambassadors

Agency(ADA)

2. Jossineter
Ndunge
Syengo Member

Dete of Birth -1980
Kev Ouelilicetions
Holds a master of Business
Administratior.
Work experience -25Ycers
KRA

3. Joseph
Makau

Member

Dete of Birth -1959
Kev Ouelificetions

Bachelor ofEducation
Work exoerience - 2l Yeers
CSO 7 Years
Principal 5. years
Teacher 9 years

4. Saidi Bakari Member

"1!l

,e
Dete of Birth - 1972
Kev Oualificetions

Bachelor of Agri-business
Managemant

Yeers
Ltd

5. Mbaw Sayo
Member ,

Dete of Birth - 1972
Kev Ourlificetions

Masters of Science , Civil
Engineering

Work experience -20 YEARS
Runji&Partners8years
KRRA l2years

vlll



Date of Birth, Key Quelifications and Work
Experience

Neme Title Photograph
Responsibility Dete of Birth &

0uelificetions. Eroerience

6. Prof. Anne
Syomwene Member

Dete of Birth - 1973
Kcv Ouelilicrdons
Doctor of Philoeophy (Curriculum
Dwclopment)
Work emerience -2Svars
Teachas 13 years
Lecturer l0 1rcars
Associate prof 2ycars

7. William
Gateri

Member

SF
I ',..

I

Drte of Blrth - 1988
Kev Ourlificrdons
Doctor of Philosophy (Curriculurn
Devclopmant)
lYork cxoericncc -25verrs
Teachcrs I 3 ycars
[,ccturer l0 years
Associate prof. 2yaars

8. John Wamae

Representative
PS F

!
ii
I

Stete Depertment for Technicd
Vocetionel treining

9. Eric Muendo

Kilonzo

PrincipaV
SecretaryB.O.G

In Charge of the
overall management
of thelnstitute

Detc of Birth -0910611970
Ouelificrdonr
Masters of Business Administration
Work cmcricncc -25 vern
Principal I years

Dcputy Principal ,2 years
Dean 7 years,
HOD 10 years
Trainer 5 pars

/

\{'i'
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IIL MANAGEMENT TEAM

Quelilicetions & Responsibility

Dete of Birth & Quellficedons

Dete of Birth -09106,119?0

Ouelificefions
Masters of Business
Administratiqr
\ilork emerience -25 veers
Principal I years
Deputy Principal ,2
yearsDean 7 years,
HOD l0 years
Trainer 5 years

Dete of Birth - 8/711985
Ouelificetions
Master of energy, Bsc
Manufacturing &
Technology
Work erperience
Content writer and editor E

y€ars
Trainer 2 years

Dete of Birth -13/211992
Ourlilicetions
Bsc. Computer science,
PGDE
Work exoerience 6 veers
Ag. Registar 9 months
Trainer 3 years
System a&ninistrator 2 years

Dete of Birth -11/02/1990
Ouelilicetions
Bsc. Automotive engineering
Work exoerience

Dean of students 9
monthsTrainer 9
months

Meneger Title Photogreph
Responribility

l. Eric Muendo Kilonzo
Principal
/Secretary
B.O.G

Overall in
Charge of
Institute
Affairs

2. Dickson Giconi
Kivindu

Ag.
Deputy
Principal

Administration
and curriculum
implernentation

3. Nelson Sirhero
Kimungui Ag. Regisfrar

Admission of
sfudents and
examinations

4. Joseph Mungai
Kimani

Ag. Dean
ofStudents

In charge of
Students
Welfare.

x
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IV. CHAIRMAN'SSTATEMENT

The office of the Chairperson of the Board of Governors of Ikutha Technical and Vocational College
(ITVC) has been active during the year under review (November 2020 to June 30 202l,the year of
inception) in managing the affairs of the College. The Board was inaugurated on l9/2l2o2l and has been in
office for four months, We reckon the existing challenges including the issues of inadequate learning
facilities, lack of power and water, fewer trainers and training resources. Despite all this, the College was
able to admit students this year and training commenced immediately

As a board, we have encouraged a change in the mindset of our people as we leveraged on the leaders to
sensitize and educate our people to embrace the concept of technical and vocational training for our youth.
The board has been and is committed to enswurg that the changing world around is sensitive to the needs of
the future of our young men and women. We shall collaborate with a number of agencies in the public and
private sector in our effort to grow the College. Particularly we have collaborated with the Kitui South
Constituency NG-CDF on various academic and economic ventures. Our desire to achieve and deliver on our
mandate has seen our drive in reaching out to each and every other partner willing to work with us.

Our mandate is to grow the student population through a number of strategies including effective outreach
programs geared to popularize the College from within and around the County. During the year under
review, the management has carried out an aggressive popularity campaign in Ikutha Sub-County and its
environs.

Besides, we endeavor to continually put in place governance systems to ensure that we not only comply with the
PFM Act of 2012 but also engage in prudent leadership practices that creates value for the College. Ikutha TVC
has remained a good corporate citizenthat meets its obligations for its staff and students as well as the national
obligations.

The college registered remarkable development which is commensurate to its resources within one ye:u since its
inception. During the period under review, the college was able to realize its mandate with financial support of
the Ministry of Education, State Departrnent of Vocational and Technical Training in form of grants and student
capitation. As a result, the College has now been able to steer its progress through linkages, collaboration and
partnerships. We continue to register an overall improvement in our performance due to enhanced resources,
physical facilitiesand infrastructure.

I wiSh on behalf of the Board of Governors to thank the State Department of Vocational and Technical Training,
Ministry of Education, the CDF Kitui South Constituency and all other development partners for the support they
continue to accord the College without which our achievements would not have been realized. Finally, I wish to
appreciate the Board members and the management team for their efforts in supporting the realization of the
College's mandate.

Chairman, Board of Governors

er//--
xl
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V. REPORT OF THE PRINCIPAL

Pursuant to Section 83 of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012,I take this opportunity to present the

College's frst annual report and furancial statements for the financial period November 2O2O to June 2021

The report focuses on thelnstitute's Strategic intent as enshrined in the TVET Act2013 which include

improvement of physical facilities and infrastructure, curriculum development, and advancement of TVET

programs by promoting research & innovation, partnership/ linkages and environmental management.

Further, the College envisages strengthening its financial base tlrough promotion of good governance and

efflective management.

The above strategic issues are part of broad initiatives undertaken by the institute's planning system in order

to impart relevance to current the national TVET reforms. This defines the College's mandate aimed at

enhancing quality, competitiveness, creativity and innovativeness in TVET sector. The report is premised on

involvement on account of analysis of goals, strategic issues, strategic objectives and activities that the

Ikutha TVC envisages to pursue nthe 2020/2021Financial year. The mandate of the BOG among other.

things is to provide apex management towards achieving the institute mandate as per the TVET Act 2013.

In order to develop a College with excellence in teaching, training, entrepreneurship, research, consultancy,

community service, among other educational services and products, Ikutha TVC envisages investing in all

forms of curriculum development with emphasis on technology. The top management has embraced change

by sensitizing the local populace to embrace the concept of technical and vocational training, particularly

the youth. During the year under review, we commit to continue to collaborate with a number of agencies

both public and private sector in our effort to grow the College. Our desire to achieve and deliver on our

mandate has seen our drive in reaching out to each and every other development partner desiring to work

with us.

During the year under review, there were serious challenges of resources since the institution missed fourth

quarter grant and HELB disbursement was not done due to furancing challenges. Besides, the college

received low capitation due to low enrolment and not all students received Government capitation.

The college has not been equipped with ICT equipment by GOK since its inception. This prompted the

management to spend some funds towards the purchase of computers.

xlt
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Challenges

The College emphasizes on the need for adequate staffurg for the ef[ective education in all departments.

Majority of the departments do not have sufficient staff to handle the trainees. Shortage of hainers is.

therefore one of the challenges facing the College. In order to alleviate the shortage, the College has been

hiring BOG staff to teach the trainees, whose remuneration originates from the meager institution resourcgs.

Duringthe2020l202l financial year, the Institute maintained 4 trainers under the BOG contract but the

number is likely to increase due to our increased programs.

Continuous dynamics in the ICT sector is inevitable where both upgrade and updates of website are a

priority. The college has no MIS for efficient of her services but due to minimal resources MIS in all our

departments remains a dream to be actualized at unknown later date.

Lack of training equipment has been a serious challenge where the college cannot roll out new technical

proglams.

Water has been a challenge since there is no water source. The college installed one plastic water tank to

harvest rainwater. Plans to harvest more rain water during the year under review were in place, but due to

shortage of resources, they were not actualized.

The college is not cormected to power. The matter is being followed up with KPLC.

-:Zf; 
,

llci '-'''
Eric Muendo K.
Pnncinal/ Secretarv. BOG

VI. STATEMENT OF PERFORMANCE AGAINST PREDETERMINED OBJECTIVES

(Two-to-three pages)

Section 8l Subsection 2 (f) of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 requtes the accounting oflicer to
include in the financial statement, a statement of the national government entity's performance against
predetermined objectives.
Ikutha Technical and Vocational College has Seven (7) strategic pillars /issues/ themes and objectives within
current Strategic Plan for the Financial Year 202012021.

Ikutha Technical and Vocational College develops its annual work plans based on the above Seven pillars.
Assessment of the Board's performance against its arurual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The
College achieved its performance targets set for the Financial2020/21period for its seven strategic pillars,
as indicated in the diagram below:

xlll



Pillar / Theme /1. - Physical
infrastructue,
facilities and
environmeht

-To
develop/irryrove
infrastucture,
facilities and
cnvironment.-

-Automotive and
electrical workshops
cmstucted.
-2 computcr labs
cmstructcd.
-play ficld levelcd
-burglar proofdoors
installcd.
-CCTVcameras
installcd.
-stafflatrinc
Donstructcd.-
-bore hole &illed.-
-geircrator housc
;onstructed

- constructing
elcctrical md
autorrdive
workshops.
-co computcr labs-
Jcrrclling frc play
6eld.
-installing burglar
proofdoors.
-installing CCTV
garncras.

- &illing a bore hole
+mstructing a
gcnerato house

-workshops
cmstructed.
-stafflatrine
constructcd
-l computer lab
constructed.

Pillar/Theme2.- ICT
integration

To acquire and
use modern ICT
systems in
faining and
service delivery.

JCTpolicy
developed.
-internet co,nnected.
- 40 computers, 3

printers,S projectors
procured.
-CCTV cameras
installed

{arcloping ICT
policy.
-connecting intemet
-procuring
computcrs and
accessmies and MIS
software,

lntEmet was installed,
-8 computas were
bought.

Pillar/Theme 3 Linkages with
other
institutions
/organizations

-. To establish
strong and
working links
with international,
national, county
government and
NGO
organizations.

Established
partnerships,
rcllabqations and
rther linkagcs with
rrganizations inter
industry and across
Lndustries.

establish

exchange

programs.

design and
levelo,p MOUs
with other
institutions

- acquired KATTI
membership.

Pillar/Theme 4 and o promote
and

-Report on

research skills.
-r€port on TNA
-implanented

research

recor:omendations.

-list of naining
participants.
-new research

lacilitie.
.implementcd

[ndings

resourceslresearch

Iequirea.

hllocate funds to
[es""r"n.
-strength the

research unit.
-undertake

haining needs

assessmeDt

-train staffin
proposal writing
and data analysis.

lor possible

funding

circulate

Flans are underway
to initiate these
necessary actions
towards this.

Pillar/Theme 5 Markaing the
colleges and
lts programs.

To market the
college and its
programs.

initiative
on a well

strategic

Developing a
marketing

strategic plan.
.sr(eculing the

Below the line
marketing activities
rmdertaken.

Ker
l't't'lirrrrr:rrrct,
I rt rl ic:r l o l's

Slt':rlegic l'illur' ()lricclir t' \ct ir ilics \cltit'r (,nlt' nl\
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leted

and

ompleted media

ements.

printing and

of

below
line marketing

plan.

a

officer
a team.

the

actrvlty

for
marketing.

Pillar/Theme 6 Create
conducive
working
environment

[fo create a

Ionducive
working and
learning
environment

reward scheme in
place

-stafftrips
-students tours
-awareness

creation.
- conduct TNA and

rrrange training
workshops/seminar

-document a fair
reward scheme.

-plan & hold staff
trips & tours.
-continuous T&D
to build capacity
in performance of
Cuties and in
management and

leadership.

plans underway to
have these in place.
Already
management
trainings have been
undertaken.

Pillar/Theme 7 -To strengthen the
financial and
other resources
status of the
college.

b'fooa a beverage

h.estaurant

constructed

-a driving school

established as per

the NTSA
regulations.
-disposal of idle
nssets.

food a beverage

driving school

as per

NTSA

of idle

Plans are underway
implement these

in the

years as

become
ble.
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VII. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STATEMENT

The College afftrms that good corporate governance is simply good business. The College commits to
ensure that there is compliance with the statutory and all the legal requirements as well as meeting the set
deadlines.

i. Appointment of BOG Members
The Cabinet Secretary, MOE appoints members of the Board following recommendations from the B.O.G
nominating committee. The Board consists of nine members. The Board of Governors for Ikutha Technical
and Vocational College serves for three years. The Board may set up sub-committees and assign them
responsibilities as it may deem fit.
As stipulated by the Ministry of Education through the TVET Act (January,2073), responsibilities of the
Board of Governors include recruitment of support staff, overseeing financial management, upholding of
staffand student discipline, maintenance of infrastructure & other assets, and sourcing for finances.

ii. Major roles and Functions of Board of Governors
The functions of the organs set out under section 28 (l) shall include -a) Overseeing the conduct of education and training in the institutions in accordance with the

provisions of this TVET Act and any other written law;
b) Promoting and maintaining standards, quality and relevance in education and training in the

institutions in accordance with this TVET Act and any other written law;
c) Administering and managing the property of the institution;
d) Developing and implementing the institutions'strategic plan;
e) Preparing annual estimates of revenue and expenditure for the institution and incurring

expenditure on behalf of the institutions;

0 Rec'eiving, on behalf of the institution, fees, grants, subscriptiohs, donations, bequests or other
moneys and to make disbursement to the institution or other bodies or persons;

g) Determining the fees payable and prescribing conditions under which fees may be remitted in
part or in whole in accordance with the guidelines developed under the provisions TVET Act;
855 2013 Technical and Vocational Education and Training No. 29

h) Mobilizing resources for the institutions;
i) Developing and reviewing programs for training and to make representations thereon to the

Board;
j) Regulating the admission and exclusion of students from the institutions, subject to a

qualifications framework and the provisions of this Act;
k) Approving collaboration or association with other institutions and industries in and outside

Kenya

l) Recruiting and appointing trainers from among qualified professionals and practicing trade's
persons in relevant sectors of industry;

m) Determining suitable terms and conditions of service for support staff, trainers and instructors
and remunerating the staff of the institutions, in consultation with the TVET Authority;

n) Making regulations goveming organization, conduct and discipline of the staff and students;

o) Preparing comprehensive annual reports on all areas of their mandate, including education and
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training services and submits the same to the ministry

p) Providing for the welfare of the students and staffof the institutions;

q) Encouraging, nurturing and promoting democratic culture, dialogue and tolerance in the

instirutions; and

r) Discharging all other functions conferred upon it by this Act or any other written law.

iii. Board of Governors Allowances
The College pays allowances to board members to catff for their transport and sitting allowances.
iv. Meetings
a. Full Board Meetings - are held once every term, but if there is an urgent need, a meeting can be

convened.
b. Board Committee Meetings, or working committees are held once every term

v. Appointment of BOG Members
The Cabinet Secretary; MOE appoints members of the Board following recommendations from the
B.O.G nominating committee. The board consists of nine members. The Board of Governors for Ikutha
Technical and Vocational College serves for three years. The Board may set up sub-committees and
assign them responsibilities as it may deem fit.

vi. Role and Functions of Board of Governors
The functions of the organs set out under section 28 (1) shall include -a. Overseeing the conduct of education and training in the institutions in accordance with

the provisions of this TVET Act and any other written law;
b. Promoting and maintaining standards, quality and relevance in education and training in

the institutions in accordlnce with this TVET Act and any other written law;
c. Administering and managing the property of the institution;
d. Developing and implementing the institutions'strategic plan;
e. Preparing annual estimates of revenue and expenditure for the institution and incurring

expenditure on behalf of the institutions;
f. Receiving, on behalf of the institution, fees, grants, subscriptions, donations, bequests or

other moneys and to make disbursement to the institution or other bodies or persons;
g. Determining the fees payable and prescribing conditions under which fees may be

remitted in pa.t or in whole in accordance with the guidelines developed under the
provisions TVET Act; 855 2013 Technical and Vocational Education and Training No.
29

h. Mobilizing resources for the institutions;
i. Developing and reviewing programs for training and to make representations thereon to

the Board;
j Regulating the admission and exclusion of students from the institutions, subject to a

qualifications framework and the provisions of this Act;
k. Approving collaboration or association with other institutions and industries in and

outside Kenya
l. Recruiting and appointing trainers from among qualified professionals and practicing

trade's persons in relevant sectors of industry;
m. Determining suitable terms and conditions of service for support staff, trainers and

instructors and remunerating the staff of the institutions, in consultation with the TVET
Authority;

xvii



IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGIIT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

n. Making regulations governing organization, conduct and discipline of the staffand
students

o. Preparing comprehensive annual reports on all areas of their mandate, including
education and training services and submits the same to the ministry

p Providing for the welfare of the students and staffof the institutions;
q. Encouraging, nurturing and promoting democratic culture, dialogue and tolerance in the

institutions; and
r. Discharging all other functions conferred upon it by this Act or any other written law.

VIII. MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

i. FinancialPerformance
The entity is financially unstable and operates on fees received from students, govemment grants and
capitation. In the FY 202012021,the College targeted to raise A.LA (Appropriation in eid) of Kshs.
3,500,000. At the end of the year, the Institution had collected A.I.A amounting to Kshs. 1,500,000. The
institution had no pending bills by the close of the financial year 202012021. During the 2O2O/2OZ1
financial year, the Institute undertook the following activities:

1. Equrpping computer lab with 8 computers costing Kshs. 420,000
2. Purchase of training materials
3. Rain water collection by installing one tank

ii. Collese's compliance with statutory requirements
The institute plans to comply with various statutory requirements; e.g., deduction and remittance of
P.A.Y.E, N.H.I.F and N.S.S.F in the coming financial year.

iii. Maior risks facins the entitv
Student's Uncertainty on their sustainability in college-, in adequate training materials,
lack of fence exposing the entity to risk of theft, lack o power to light at night and
equipment, being occasioned bydelayed disbursements of G.o.K capitation

iv. Material arrears in statutory /financial oblisations
At end of the financial year, there was no outstanding debt from the creditors because
the College was new in existence and therefore lacked credit worthiness.

xvll



IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2I

DL EVIRONMENTAL AND SUSTAINABILITY REPORTING

1. Sustainability strategy and profile
Ikutha Technical and Vocational College is strategically placed along Kibwezi - Kitui road near Ikutha

market in Kitui County.

The Vocational Training Sub-sector, despite being a major producer of self & formal employment

opirortunities, has not been able to perform as anticipated due t6 a number of reasons. To address the

above anomaly the College wishes to put diverse efforts in place to make sure the College performs as

mandated. One such effort is to develop a Sustainability Growth Plan (SGP). The main aim of the

intervention is to map out a sustainable growth plan to increase access to diverse training opportunities

and increase trainees' enrolment and retention to a realistic number of 500 by the end, of 2024

2. Environmental performance

Land Issue

The entity has an issue of land l0 acre which is not sufficient enough for any meaningful growth to cater

for expansion and future development of the College. The entity is committed to pursue with the County

Government to allocate more funds to purchase extra land within the surrounding to pave way for future

expansion.

Water

The entity is predominantly in an arid zone. In order to solve the problem of water shortage in the

College, the entity resolved to collect all the rain water and increase water tanks from 1-10; including

rehabilitating the ground water tank, which was initially used by the contractor to store water for cleaning

and watering plants.

Employee welfare

The entity is in a process of coming up with a Human Resource Management policy which will guide the

hiring process, procedures, regulations and other administrative procedures relating to hiring of human

resources. The Board of Governors (BOG) continues to hire the services of non- teaching staffon

contractual basis according to the College's needs and ability to pay salaries. Over the one year, the BOG

staffs have continued to suffer poor remuneration due to inadequate resources. With the realization of the

high cost of living, the Board is unable to review their salaries due to meager resources. However, the

Board has maintained salaries that are affordable considering the low fees paid Sparents for personal

emoluments.

Specifically, the policy manual on progress intents to: -
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Ensure adherence to the Constitution as the supreme reference document and other government

regulations.

Ensure a cortmon understanding by Ikutha Technical and Vocational College's Staff of
stipulated standards and procedures in monitoring their performance for continued

improvement. 
_

Achieve optimum utilization of staff skills and talents, in enhancing career development.

Create a conducive working environment, positive relations, parity treatment of all cadres of staff

and work life balance

a) We build trust with all stakeholders by ensuring that ethical decision-making guides responsible

procurement of dayto-day necessities, The College will be advertising its annual tenders every

two years through College website, social media platforrrL etc, and ensures that the tendering

process is mopenly and fairly to select the best suitable vendors. Staffs are guided by the code

of conduct and procurement ethics thus ensures no unwanted information lands to

unintended users. Our clients are free to make inquiries and seek clarifications when need

arises.

,b) The College conducts due diligence on the vendors it engages with to avert the high risk of
transacting with blacklisted companies. The College has great record in managing good

supplier relation. We give timely orders to avoid unnecessary rush and pbnic buying which

brings about misunderstanding. Once deliveries are made, the payment process starts.

c) Payment is done on the stipulated times in our service charter. Our suppliers are accorded

professional service to ease operations. There are regular meetings held do to supplier

evaluation to ensure the best is achieved and in case of any challenges they are ironed out.

d) The College applies ethical marketing in relation to standard of fairness or moral rights to

its best interests, besides ensuring good publicity with clients, and occasional adverts in

posters and radios.

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

Ikutha Technical and Vocational College exists to transform lives. This is our purpose; the driving force

behind everything we do. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, which is founded on three pillars:

putting the customerlCitizen first, delivering relevant goods and services, and improving operational

excellence. Below is a brief highlight of our achievements in each pillar.

a

a

Market place practices
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Community Engagements

The institution undertook a stakeholder mapping and analysis, and held consultations with Key

Stakeholders (Strategic Partners) in the Constituency. From the survey in the Constituency there was

indication that most of the youths associate themselves in the following activities/occupations.

a) Transport sector e.g., Bodaboda, touts

b) Small businesses e.g., Retail, M-pesa, saloons,

c) Agribusiness - farming of Mangoes, oranges and chicken rearing

d) Performing arts and theatre.

From the above findings, the entity undertakes to corroborate with community under the following areas

of skills upgrading and offer training to the youths on various areas of need based on skills gap and a

targeted outcome for varying youth groups.

a) Hair dressing and beauty therapy.

b) Entrepreneurial skills.

c) Employability and life skills.

d) First aid short course for truck drivers

The Corporate Social Responsibility activities

During the year under review, the entity sought further on the areas requiring intervention through CSR

approach. The entity established and empowered the Guidance and Counselling department to seek to

help the community on the following areas;

a) Youth in drug and substance abuse - Muguka, alcohol and other substances

b) Young mothers - how to focus on empowering young mothers in economic activities.

c) Youth in HIV and AIDs.

d) Those in need for mentorship programs and career choice.
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X. REPORT OF THE BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The Board members submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the 8 period
November 2020 to 30 June 2021 which show the state of the entity's affairs.

Principal activities

The core activities carried out by the institution relate to training, innovation and research in
business and technical skills.

Vision

To be a leading college offering career focused training that equips its graduates to visualize and
achieve excellence award in the dynamic global community

Mission

To offer transformativ^e training for the production of competent, committed and competitive
graduates to the market -

Core Values
o Professionalism
. Integdty
o Teamwork.
o Accountability
o Innovativeness
o EUuitV

Results

The results ofthe entity for the year ended June 30 are set out on page l-6

BOARD OF GOVERNORS

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page vii-viii. During the year no
director retired/ resigned and no one was appointed.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of Ikutha Technical and Vocational College in
accordance with Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 2015 and has noi
nominated any other Certified Public Accountants to carry out the audit of the College for the year ended
June 30, 2021 n accordance to section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor
General to appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.
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xr. STATEMENT OF BOARD OF GOVERNORS MEMBERS'
RESPONSIBILITIES

The BOG members are responsible for the preparation and presentation of Ikutha Technical and Vocational
College financial statements,which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs ofthe College as at 30

June202l
The BOG responsibility includes:
(i). Maintaining adequate financial management arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be

effective throughout the reporting period;
(ii). Maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the
financial position of the institute;
(iii). Designing, implementing and maintaining internal controls relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation ofthe furancial statements, and ensuring that they are free from material misstatements,
whether due to error or fraud;
(iv). Safe guarding the assets of the Institute;
(v). Selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies; and
(vi). Making accounting estimates that are reasonable in the circumstances.

The BOG members accept responsibility for the entity's financial statements, which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and estimates, in
conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the manner required by
the PFM Act,2012 and the TVET Act 2013. The BOG members are of the opinion that the Institute's
financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of transactions during the financial year ended

June 30, 2021, and of the College's financial position as at that date. The Board members further confirm
the completeness of the accounting records maintained for the College, which have been relied upon in the
preparation ofthe College's frnancial statements as well as the adequacy of the systems of internal financial
control.

Nothing has come to the attention of the Board members to indicate that the college will not remain a going
concern for at least the next twelve months from the date ofthis statement.

Approval of the financial statements

Ikutha TVC financial statements were approved by the Board on 286 September 2021 and signed on its
behalf by:

I
Name Name...,;.-:l

Signature...

Principal

t("

Signature

Chairperson of the Board

(b dil/*
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REPUBLIC OF KENYA

OFF!CE OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL

E n hu nc i n g A c' c ou tla hi I itv

HEADqUARTERS

Anniversary Towers

Monrovia Street
P.O. Box Joo84-oo1oo

NAIROBI

REPORT OF THE AUDITOR.GENERAL ON IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL
COLLEGE FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2021

PREAMBLE

I draw your attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts:

A. Report on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
are fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
accounting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
on the financial statements.

B. Report on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
compliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
guidelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
efficient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure government
achieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended purpose.

C. Report on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
which considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internat
operations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, the risk
management environment, and the internal controls developed and implemented by
those charged with governance for orderly, efficient and effective operations of the
entity.

An unmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
relevant laws and regulations, and that its internal controls, risk management and
governance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
year under review.

The three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
responsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the
Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the report, when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General.

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Adverse Opinion

I have audited the accompanying financial statements of lkutha Technical and Vocational
College set out on pages 1 to 47 , which comprise of the statement of financial position as
at 30 June, 2021, and the statement of financial performance, statement of changes in
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,net assets, statement of cash flows and statement of comparison of budget and actual
amounts for the year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting policies and
other explanatory information in accordance with the provisions of Article 229 of the
Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all
the information and explanations which, to the best of my knowledge and belief, were
necessary for the purpose of the audit.

In my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of lkutha Technical and Vocational College as at 30 June, 2021, and of
its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended, in accordance with
lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards (Accrual Basis) and do not comply with
the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 and the Technical and Vocational Education
Training Act, 2013.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Lack ofa General Ledger

The College's Management did not provide for audit a ledger in support of the balances
in the financial statements for audit. Further, the trial balance presented did not support
all the balances in the financial statements.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the financial statements could
not be confirmed.

2. Unsupported Transfers from the National Government

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 6 to the financial
statements reflects transfers from the National Government amount of Kshs.1,500,000
relating to operational grants from Wote Technical Training lnstitute. However, the
amount was not supported with transfer documentations and receipt vouchers as
required in Regulation 104(1) of Public Financial Management (National Government)
Regulations, 2015.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the transfers from the National
Treasury of Kshs.1,500,000 could not be confirmed.

3. Rendering of Services-Fees from Students

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 10 to the financial
statements reflects an amount of Kshs.932,992 in relation to rendering of services-fees
from students. However, no supporting documents were provided for audit to confirm the
revenue.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the revenue of Kshs.932,992
could not be confirmed.

4. Misclassification of Use of Goods and Services Expenditure

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services expenditure amount of Kshs.1,127,519.

Report of the Auditor-General on Ikutha Technical and Vocational College for the year ended 30 June, 202 t
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The expenditure includes an amount of Kshs.74,603 which incurred on the purchase of a
water tank together with accessories which was classified under electricity, water and
conservancy. Management did not explain the failure to capitalize the expenditure under
property, plant and equipment. Further, the supporting documents for the expenditure
reflects an amount of Kshs. 76,200 resulting to an unexplained variance of Kshs.1,597.

ln the circumstances, the expenditure on use of goods and services for the year under
review is overstated by an amount of Kshs.74,603.

5. Unsupported Travelling and Accommodation Expenses

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 15 to the financial
statements reflects use of goods and services expenditure amount of Kshs 1,127,519.
The expenditure includes travel, upkeep and subsistence allowances totaling
Kshs.326,510. However, imprests issued were not supported by imprest warrants and
there was no imprest register to record imprests issues, related surrenders and balances
at the end of the period.

In the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the expenditure of Kshs 326,510
could not be confirmed.

6. Employee Costs

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 16 to the financial
statements reflects employee costs amount of Kshs.311,000. However, the expenditure
was not supported by a payroll. Further, cashbook analysis of employees' costs indicated
a total of Kshs.321,675 resulting in a variance of Kshs 10,675. Management did not
provide a reconciliation to explain the variance.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the employee costs of
Kshs.31 1 ,100 could not be confirmed.

7. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 26to the financial statements
reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs. 80,923. However, bank reconciliation
statement for one bank account include unpresented slips of Kshs.3,240 that was not
supported. Further, bank reconciliations were not prepared for some months during the
year and the cashbook was not subjected to independent check.

!n addition, the cash and cash equivalents balance includes cash in hand amount of
Kshs.23,133 for which no board of survey report and certificate of cash balance were
provided for audit.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash
equivalents balance of Kshs.80,923 could not be confirmed.

8. Property, Plant and Equipment

The statement of financial position reflects the property, plant and equipment balance of
Kshs.61,681,588 as disclosed in Note 31 to the financial statements. However, balance
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excludes office furniture, refrigeration and conditional equipment of an unknown value
which were donated by the parent Ministry.

ln addition, ownership documents for the College land were also not provided for audit
verification. Further, Management did not provide supporting records for the property
plant and equipment including fixed assets register indicating all the assets owned by the
College and giving relevant details such as assets description, date of acquisition, costs
of purchase and current values. The Management was therefore not in compliance with
the provisions of Regulation 143(1) of Public Finance Management (National
Government) Regulations, 2015, that require the Accounting Officer to maintain a register
of assets under his or her control or possession.

ln the circumstances, the completeness, accuracy and ownership of the property, plant
and equipment valued as Kshs.61,681,588 could not be confirmed.

9. Unconfirmed Capital Fund

The statement of financial position reflects a capital fund balance of Kshs.62,188,928.
However, the supporting documents were not provided for audit. Further, there is no
disclosure Note to the financial statements and Management did not provide an analysis
to support the balance.

!n the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of capital fund balance of
Kshs.62,188,928 could not be confirmed

10. Statement of Gash Flows

The statement of cash flows reflects an amount of Kshs.760,930 relating to purchase of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets as part of cashflows from investing
activities. However, Note 31 to the financial statements indicates the additions to property,
plant and equipment amount of Kshs.2,123,630 resulting to an unexplained or un
reconciled a variance of Kshs.1,362,700.

ln the circumstances, the completeness and accuracy of the statement of cash flows
could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with lnternational Standards of Supreme Audit
lnstitutions (lSSAls). I am independent of the Ikutha Technical and Vocational College
Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on Code of Ethics. ! have fulfilled other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other ethical
requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I believe
that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
my adverse opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgment, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.
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Other Matter

1. Budgetary Controt and Performance

The statement of comparative budget and actual amounts reflects final receipts budget
and actual on comparable basis of Kshs.8,501,000 and Kshs.2,432,992 respectively
resulting in revenue under collection of Kshs.6,068,008 (or71o/o) of the budget. Similarly,
the College expended Kshs.1,591,139 against an approved budget of Kshs.8,501,000
resulting to an under-expenditure of Kshs.6,909,861 or 81o/o of the budget

The underfunding and underperformance affected the planned activities and may have
impacted negatively on service delivery to the public.

2. Unresolved Prior Year Matters

ln the audit report of the previous year, a number of paragraphs were raised under the
Report on Financial Statements. However, Management has not resolved the issues nor
disclosed all the prior year matter as provided by the Public Sector Accounting Standards
Board templates.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Gonclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution, because of the significance of the
matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of
Public Resources section of my report, based on the audit procedures performed, I

confirm that public resources have not been applied laMully and in an effective way.

Basis for Conclusion

1. Non-Compliance to Public Sector Accounting Standards Board Reporting
Template

The review of the financial statements provided for audit revealed the following errors in
presentation:

The financial statements has skipped page 6 and page numbers have not been
indicated in page 3 and 50.

The statement of changes in net assets does not include amount for net surplus
for the year.

Report of the Board of Governors in page xxii has not been signed as required

iv. ICPAK membership number of the finance officer has not been included under
the statement of financial position.
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ln the circumstances, the financial statements do not comply with the format prescribed
by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

2. lrregular Procurement of Assets

ln the year under review, the College purchased assets consisting of a 10,000 litres water
tank including fittings at an amount of Kshs.76,200, 8 desktop computers valued at an
amount of Kshs.420,000 and white boards of Kshs.27,510 all totaling to Kshs.523,710.
However, the payment vouchers were not supported with local purchase orders and
inspection and acceptance committee certificates. This is contrary to Regulation 104 (1)
of the Public Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015 which
requires that all receipts and payments vouchers of public moneys shall be properly
supported by pre-numbered receipt and payment vouchers and shall be supported by the
appropriate authority and documentation.

!n the circumstances, Management is in breach of law.

3. Lack of Approved Procurement Plan

Review of the procurement documents revealed that the College incurred a total
expenditure amount of Kshs. 1 ,548,717 on procurement of goods and services. However,
Management did not present an approved procurement plan for audit verification implying
that the College did not adhere to the provisions of Regulation 51 (3) and (6) of the Public
Finance Management (National Government) Regulations, 2015, which requires an
Accounting Officer to make an expenditure commitment only against the procurement
plan approved for that entity.

!n the circumstance, the Management was in breach of the law

4. Lack of a List of Registered Suppliers

During the year under review, the College ltlanagement procured goods totaling
Kshs.856,692 through request for quotations and direct procurement methods. However,
the Management did not provide for audit a list registered supplier and it was not
explained how the firms invited to submit quotations were identified and selected. This is
contrary to Section 57 (1) of the Public Procurement and Asset Disposal Act, 2015 which
requires the head of the procurement function of a procuring entity to maintain and update
lists of registered suppliers, contractors and consultants in the categories of goods, works
or services according to its procurement needs.

ln the circumstances, the Management was in breach of the law

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The standard requires that I

comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
about whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the
financial statements are in compliance, in all material respects, with the authorities that
govern them. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Report of the Auditor-General on Ikutha Technical and Vocational College for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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REPORT ON EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK MANAGEMENT
AND GOVERNANCE

Conclusion

As required by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, because of the significance
of the matters discussed in the Basis for Conclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls,
Risk Management and Governance section of my report, based on the audit procedures
performed, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and governance were not
effective.

Basis for Conclusion

Lack of lnternal Audit Function and an Audit Committee of the Board

The College has not established an internal audit function and an Audit Committee of
the College. This is contrary to Section 155 of the Public Finance Management Act,
2012 which provides for the establishment of the internal audit function and an Audit
Committee of the Board. As such the College did not benefit from the assurance and
advisory services from the internal audit function as well as oversight from the Audit
Committee.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of the College's internal controls, risk
management and governance could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSA| 2330. The standard
requires that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Board of Governors

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with lnternational Public SectorAccounting Standards (Accrual
Basis) and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and overall governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, Management is responsible for assessing the
College's ability to continue sustaining services, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of intention to terminate the College or to cease operations.

Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Ikuthq Technical and Vocational Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 202 I
7



in compliance with the authorities which govern them, and that public resources are
applied in an effective way.

The Board of Governors is responsible for overseeing the College's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how the Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and responsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Auditor-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

The audit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
of Section 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
Article 229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always detect
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these financial statements.

ln addition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
performed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,
financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
compliance with the authorities that govern them, and that public resources are applied
in an effective way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
and submit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

Further, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit of
compliance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance processes and systems in
accordance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the internal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
might be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in
which the design or operation of one or more of the internal controls components does
not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in
amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
occur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
performing their assigned functions.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
misstatements and instances of non-compliance.

Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the
risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the College's policies and procedures may deteriorate.

Report ofthe Auditor-General on lkutha Technical and Vocational Collegefor the year ended 30 June, 2021
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As part of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

ldentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

a

a

a

a

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the College's
ability to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
! am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion. tvly
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of my audit
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the College to cease to
continue to sustain its services.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the College to express an opinion on the financial statements.

. Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances.

I communicate with the Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

CPA N , CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

12 September,2022

Report of the Auditor-General on lkutha Technical and Vocational College for the year ended 30 June, 202 I
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IKUT.HA TECHMCAL AI{D VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANI)
FINAhICIAL STATEMENTS FOR TITE EIGHT MONTIIS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI]NE 2021

STATEMENT OF FINAI\CIAL PERTORMANCE FOR TIIE 8 MONTHS PERIOD
NOYEMBER 2O2O TO.3O JT'NE 2021

The notes set out on pages 6 to 47 form an integral prt of the Annual Financial Stat€m€nts.

1

Revenue from non+rchrngc trrnnctionr
5 l,5oo,o0o 000Transfcrs from thc Natimal Governmcot-graotd gifrs in kind

7 )00 000GraDts from donrs and dcvclopment partncrs

Transfcrs fiom other lwels of government 3 )00 000

Public contibutions and dmatisns ) )00 000

1.500.000 000fotel rcvcnuc from non- crchrngc trrnlectlonr
Revcnue from erchenge trenrections

Rendering ofservices- Fees Aom students t0 ,32,992 000

Sale ofgoods ll )00 000

t2 000 c00Rental rcvcnue from facilities and cquipment

t3 000 000Finance income-extemal invesfineirts

t4 000 )00Other income

932,992 000Revenue from erchenge trenslctions

Totrl revenue 2,432,992 D00

Eryenses

Use ofgoods and serviccs l5 1,127,519 )00

Employee costs 15 I I 1,000 )00

Remuneration of directors l7 I 10,000 )00

l8 c00 )00Depreciation and amortizafi on o(pense

t9 19,550 )00Repairs and maintenance

E00 )00Contacted services z0

zt 800 )00Grants and subsidies

Finance costs/bank charges t2 1,070 )00

[1,591,1391 t0001Totel expenser

Other gdns/(loeses)

23 )00 )00Gain on sale of assets

)00 000Unrealized gain on frir value of investmeirts 24

2,s )00 (0oo)Impairmcnt loss

000Totel other grins/(losses) D00

14l,t53 000Net Surplur for the yerr
Attributablc to:

)00 000Surplus/(deficit)attributable to minority intcrcst

000 )00Surplus attibutable to owners of the controlling entity

Ml,E53 D00

lr)lr)-l0l I

Krlrr
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI.'NE 2O2I

vt. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITIONAS AT 30 JUNE 2021

Arsetr

Current rsrets

Cash and cash equivalelrts t6 30,923 D

Curient portim of receivables from exchange transactims t7(a)- 1,270,950 )
Receivables from non-exchange transactiurs z8 )
Inventories t9 l )

Investmeats 30 l )

1,351,E73 )

Non-currcnt rsscts

Property, plant and equipme,nt ll 5l,681,588 )

Investnents 30 0

Intangible assets t2 7,300 c

Investment property ]3 ) )
Long term receivables from exchange transactions r7(b) ) )

Iotal Non-Current 61,688,999 )

Totel essets 53,040,751 !
Liabilities

Current liebilities

Trade and other payables from exchange transactions ,4 ),990 0

Refundable deposits from customers ]5 ) )
Current hovisions ]6 )0 )
Finance lease obligation 37 ) l
Current portion of borrowings 4l l )

Deferred income 38 ) )

Employee bencfit obligatior t9 ) 0

Payments received in advance ) )
,,990 0

Non-currcnt liebilitiec

Non-current ernployee benefit obligatior 39 l )

Non -current provisions 40 l )

Borrowings il ) 0

Service concession liability t2 ) )
Deferred tax liabilities 49 )
Totel liebilities g,gE0

D

Net essets 63,030,7E1 )
Reserves ) )

Accumulated surplus 341,t53 D

Capital Fund 62,188,929

Total net rssets end liabilities i3,030,7E1 D

\olcr :0:l)-l(l: I

hrhr
l() l e-1010

Krlrr
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Carh flowr from opereting ectMties

Receiptr

Transfers from other Govemmcnt cntities/Govt. grants 5 l,5oo,ooo )00

Public contributions and donations )00 )00

Rendering of senrices- Fecs from students IO ,32,9,92 )00

Sale ofgoods )00 )00

Rental revenue from facilities and equipment )00 )00

Finance income )00 )00

Other incomc )00 )00

Totel Receipts 1,432,992 !00

Peymentr

Use of goods and services t5 l,l27,5lg )00

Staffcost t6 3l1,000 000

Repairs and rnaintenance 19 19,550 000

Directors' remuneration t7 I10,0fi) 000

Finance costs/bank charges z2 ]070 00q

000 000Grants and subsidies paid

Totd Peyments 1,591,139 000

Net crsh flows from operating ectivities t3 M1,t53 D00

Cerh f,ows from invcsting rctivitier
Purchase of property, plant, equipment and intangibleassets 1760,930) (000)

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment )00

Decrease in non-current receivables )00 )00

Increase in investments :000) 1000)

Net cash llows used in invecting ectivities (760,930) (000)

Cash flows from finencing activities
Proceeds from borrowings )00 )00

Repayment of borrowings (000) :000)

lncrease in deposits 000 )00

Net crsh flows used in financing ectivitier (000) :000)

Net increase(decreese)in crsh end cesh equivdcnts 80,923 (000)

Cash and cash equivalents at IIULY 2020 0.00 000

Cash end crsh equivelents at 30 Jt NE 2021 25 80,923 000

vlu.

IKUTHA TECHNICAL AI{D VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REFORT ANI)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI,'NE 2O2I

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR TIM t MONTIIS PERIOD NOYEMBER 2O2O TO 30
JI,'NE 2021

(IPSAS 2 allows an entity to present the cash flow statement using the direct or indjrcct rnethod but cncourages the direct method.
PSASB also recommcnds the usc of dircct method of cash flow preparation).
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AI{D
: FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOYEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

STATEMENT OF COMPARISON OF BUDGET AND ACTUAL AMOI.JNTS FOR THE PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2I

Budget notes
L !f.t1O; e.planation of differences between actual and budgeted amounts (l}Yo over/under) IPSAS

24.14
The inception budget for the period under review was far from reality due to difficulties
in accurately forecasting operations in a completely new operating environment. It was
likely to be too ambitious/overly over optimistic. The institution had anticipated funds for
support in development projects from both the coturty and local government which
formed part of the original budget and these did not materialize. In addition, capitation
was not allocated and government grants were for three quarters. Collections from
students in form of fees were also few because of the low capacity at the time; hence the
variance between the budgeted and the actual anrounts.

7

t020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021 2020-2021 t02&202t 2020-202t
Revenue Kshs Krhs Kshs Kshs Kshs %
Transfas from other
Gqvt entities Govt
gpnts

3,500,000' (000) ],500,000 1,500,000 2,000,000 42.86%

Public contributions
and donations

000 [000) )00 000 :000) J0%

Rendering of services-
Fees from students

1,501,000 (000) 1,501,000 932,991.60 568,008.40 52.2%

Sale ofgoods )00 )00 000 (000) 0%
Finance lncome )00 000 )00 000 0%

Development funding
from GOK

3,500,000 J,500,000 000 1,500,000 100v,

Other Income 000 )00 000 )00 J%
Gains on disposal,
rental income and
agency fees

D00 000 )00 000 (000) \Yo

Total income 8,501,000 (000) 3,501,000 2,432,991.60 (6,068,00t.40) 28.6%
Expenses

Compensation of
employees

000 3l1,000.00 0%

Use of Goods and
services

8,501,000 (000) 8,501,000 1,127,519.00 7,373,481.00 13.3Yo

Finance costs )00 1000) 3,070.00 )%
Repair and
maintenance

)00 (000) 19,550.00 0%

Remuneration of
directors

000 (000) I10,000.00 0%

Grants and subsidies
paid

000 J%

Total expenditure 8,501,000 (000) 8,501,000 1,591,139.00 6,909,961.00 18.7%
Surplus for the
period

000 000 D00 841,t52.60
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGIIT MONTHS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS

GENERAL INFORMATION
Ikutha Technical and Vocational College is established by and derives its authority and

accountability from TVET Act 2013. The College is wholly owned by the Government of
Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The institution's principal activity is to offer
transformative training for the production of competent and competitive graduates who can

visualize and achieve excellence in the current dynamic and global community

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE AND BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual basis except for the measurement
at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant and equipment, marketable
securities and financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated
recoverable amounts and actuarially determined liabilities at their present value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with International Public Sector
Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of estimates and assunptions. It also
requires management to exercise judgement in the process of applying Ikutha Technical
and Vocational College's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of
judgement or complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
furancial statements, are disclosed below every note.

The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya Shillings, which is
the functional and reporting currency of Ikutha Technical and Vocational College.

The financial dtatements have been prbpared in accordance with the PFM Act, the Stite
Corporations Act, the TVET Act and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards
(IPSAS). The accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years
presented.
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE AI\INUAL REPORT AND
:FINANCIAL STATEMENTS T'OR TIIE EIGIIT MONTIIS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REWSED STANDARDS

i. Relevent new strndards and amendments to published standards elfective for the
yearended 30June 2021.

Other
Improvements
to IPSAS

a) Amendments to IPSAS 13, to include the appropriate
references to IPSAS on impairment, in place ofthe current
references to other international and/or national accounting
framcworks.

b) IPSAS 13, Leases and IPSAS 17, Property, plant, and
Equipment.
Amendments to remove transitional provisions which should
have been deleted when IPSAS 33, First Time Adoption of
Accrual Basis International Public Sector Accounting
Standards (IPSASs) was approved.

c) IPSAS 21, Impairment ofNon-Cash-Generating Assets and
IPSAS 26, knpairment of Cash Generating Assets.
Amendments to ensure consistency of impairment guidance to
account for revalued assets in the scope of tpSAS 17,
Property, Plant, and Equipment and IPSAS 31, Intangible
Assets.

d) IPSAS 33, First-time Adoption of Accrual Basis International
Fublic Sector Accounting Standards (IPSASs).
Amendments to the implementation guidance on deemed cost
in IPSAS 33 to make it consistent with the core principles in
the Standard.

(These amendments do not inpact on financial statements)

Applicable: lil Jenualy 2021:
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IKUTHA TECHIVICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AI{D
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

ii. New and amended standards end interpretetions in issue but not yet effective in
thc year ended 30 June 2021.

IPSAS 41:
.Financial

Instruments

Applicable: I't Januery 2023:
The objective of IPSAS 4l is_to establish principles for the financial
reporting of financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and
useful information to users of financial statements for their assessment of
the amounts, timing and uncertainty of an entity's furure cash flows.
IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful
information than IPSAS 29,by:

.Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial
assets that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the
objective for which the asset is held;

'Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is
applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and

.Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the
hedging arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a
strong link between an entity's risk management strategies and the
accounting treatment for instruments held as part of the risk management
strategy.
(These amendments do not inrpact on financial statements)

IPSAS 42:
Social Benefits

Appticable: 1' January 2023
The objectivo of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful
representativeness and comparability of the information that a reporting
entity provides in its financial statements about social benefits. The
information provided should help users of the financial statements and
general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature of such social benefits provided by the entity;
(b) The key features of the operation of those social benefit schemes; and
(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the entity's financial
performance, financial position and cash flows.
(These amendments do not impact on financial statements)

Amendments
to Other IPSAS
resulting from
IPSAS 41,
Financial
Instruments

Applicable: lst January 20232
a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the

conponents ofborrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted
when IPSAS 4l was issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on
hedging and credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for
financial guarantee contracts which were inadverte,ntly omitted when
IPSAS 4l was issued.

d) Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classiffing
Financial instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis
IPSASwhich were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

l0



IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANI)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGIIT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2r

issued.

lll. Early adoption of standards
The entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards nyear 2021.

4. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCO[NTING POLICTES

a) Revenue recognition
i. Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other government entities
Revenues from non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair

value and recognized on obtaining control of the asset (cash, goods, services and property) if the
transfer is free from cohditions and it is probable that the economic binefits or service poiential
related to the asset will flow to the entity and can be measured reliably. Recurrent grants are
recognized in the statement of comprehensive income. Development/capital grants are
recognized in the statement of financial position and realized in the statement of comprehensive
income over the useful life of the assets that has been acquired using such funds

ii. Ii.evenue from exchange transactions

Rendering of setvices

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of
completion when the outcome ofthe transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of
completion is measured by reference to labor hours incurred to date as a percentage of total
estimated labor hours.

Where the contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to
the extent that the expenses incured are recoverable.

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards of
ownership have been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery ofthe goods and when the
amount of revenue can be measured reliably and it is probable that the economic benefits or
service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts

l1



IKUTHA TECHNICAL AIID VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANI)
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MOI{THS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net
carrying amount. The method applies this yield to the principil outstanding to determine interest
income each pcriod.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's orthe entity's right
to receive payments is established.

4 SIIMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIINTING POLICIES (Continued)

a) Revenue recognition (Continued)

ii) Revenue from exchange transactions (continued)

Rentel income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accountedfor on a
straight-line basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.

b) Budget informetion

The original budget for FY 2020/2021was approved by the Council or Board on
29/0ll202l- Subsequent revisions or additional appropriations were made to the approved budget
in accordance with specific approvals from the appropriate authorities. The additional
appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon receiving the respective
approvals in oider to conclude the finzrl budget. Accordingly,'the entity recorded additional
appropriations of 202012021 onthe FY 202012021budget following the CounciV Board's
approval.

The entity's budget is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure
disclosed in the financial statements. The findncial statements are prepared on accrual basis using
a classification based on the nature of expenses in the statement of financial performance,
whbreas the budget is prepared on a cash basis. The amounts ih the financial statements were
recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and reclassified by presentation to be on the same
basis as the approved budget. A cornparison of budget and actual amounts, prepared on a
comparable basis to the approved budget, is then presented in the statement of conparison of
budget and actual amounts.

In addition to the Basis difference, adjustments to amotrnts in the financial statements are
also made for differences in the formats and classification schemes adopted for the presentation of
the financial statements and the approved budget.

A statement to reconcile the actual arnounts on a comparable basis included in the
statement of conrparison of budget and actual amounts and the actual as per the statement of
financial performance has been presented under page 7 of these financial statements.

c) Taxes

Curent income tex
The entity is exempt from paying tar(es as per the First schedule of the Income Tax Act.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTTNG POLICIES (continued)

c) Taxes (continued)

Sales taxl Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net ofthe amount ofsales tax, except:

from the taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the
cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense iterq as applicable.

The net amount of sales tax recoverable Aorq or payable to, the taxation authority is
included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes
the costs.of day-to-day maintenance of an investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair
value at the date of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties
are measured using the cost model and are depreciated,over a period of xxx years.

Investment groperties are derecognized either when they have been disposed of or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference
between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset is recognized in
the surplus or deficit in the period of de-recognition.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses. Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items. When significant parts of propqty,plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such parts as individual assets
with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major
inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and
equipment as a replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and
maintenance costs are recognized in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is
acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or nominal consideration the asset is
initially measured at its fair value.
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NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICAI\T ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

f) Leeses

Finance leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the College. Assets held under a finance
Idase arc capitalized at the commencement of the lease at the fair value ofthe leased

- property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease payments. The
Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The
liability recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease
payments at initial recognition.

Subsequent to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on
the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognized as finance costs
in surplus or deficit.

An asset held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life of the asset.

However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the
dsset by the end ofthe lease terrn, the asset is depreciated over the shorter ofthe
estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.
Operating leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits
incidental to ownership of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are

recognized as an operating expense in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

g) Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the date of

, the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Internally generated
intangible assets, excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and
expenditure is reflected in surplus or deficit in the period in which the expenditure is

incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is assessed as either finite or indefinite

h) Research end development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual
project are recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

available for use or sale

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated
amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period
of expected future benefit. During the period of development, the asset is tested
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for impairment annually with any impairment losses recognized immediately in
surplus ordeficit.

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i) Finencialinstruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition end melsurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or
deficit, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments or available-foi-sale
financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its
financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial
measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost
using the effective interest method, less impairrnent. Amortized cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and feesor costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the surplus or deficit.

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fxed
maturities are classified as held to maturity when the Entity has the positive
intention and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-
maturity investments are measured at amorttzed cost using the effective interest
method, less impairment. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of ihe
effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus
or deficit.

Impairment of financial assets

The Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a
financial asset or an entity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an
entity of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only i{, there is objective
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
the following indicators:
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NOTES TO iHE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOIINTING POLICIES (Continued)

i) Finencialinstruments(Continued)

Finencial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

difficulty

reorganization

(e.g. changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults)

Financial liabilities

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial
liabilities at fair value through surplus or deficit or loans and borrowings, as

appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its financial liabilities at
initial recognition.
All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans
and borrowings, plus directly attributable transaction costs.

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are
recognized in surplus or deficit when the liabilities are derecognized, as well as

through the effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on
acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was
received through non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost
of the inventory is its fair value at the date of acquisition.

Costs incurred in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are
accounted for, as follows:

proportion of manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but
excluding borrowing costs
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

i) Inventories(Contlnued)

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. However, to the dxtent that aclass of inventory is distributed or deployed at ho
charge or for a nominal charge, that class of inventory is measured at the iower of cost
and current replacement cost.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary cowse of operations,
less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the
sale, exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognrzed as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption
in the ordinary course of operations of the Entity.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or
constructive) as a result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to settle the
obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example,
under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial
performance net of any reimbursement.

Contingent liabilities

The Entity does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses details of any
contingencies in the notes to the financial statements, unless the possibiiity of an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potentiaiis remotl.

Contingent assets

The Entity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible
asset whose existence is contingent on the occurrence or non-occrurence of on" or
more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Entity in the notes to
the financial statements. Contingent assets are assessed continually to ensure that
developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements. If it has become
virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and
the asset's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the relited revenue are
recognized in the financial statements of the period in which the change occurs.
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NOTES TO THE EINAIICIAL STATEMENTS (Continued) .

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

k) Nature and purpose of reserves

Ikutha Technical and Vocational College does not create and maintain reserves in terms
of specific requirements.

Changes in,accounting policies and estimates
Ikutha Technical and Vocational College recognizes the effects of changes in
accounting policy retrospectively. The effects of changes in accounting policy are
applied prospectively if rehospective application is impractical.

l) Employee benefits

Retirement benelit plens

Ikutha Technical and Vocational College provides retirement benefits for its errployees
and directors. Defined contribution plans are post-enployment benefit plans under
which an entity pays fixed contributions r4to a separate entity (a fund), and will have
no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions ifthe fund does not hold
suffrcient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the current
and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement
benefits are charged against income in the year in which they trbcome payable.

Defined benefit plans are post-employment benefit plans other than defined-
contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are actuarially valued tri-annually on the
projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified,are recovered tbrough lump sum
payments or increased future contributions on proportional basis to all participating
enployers.,The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment
benefit obligation.

m) Foreign currency transections

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate of
exchange on the date of the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in
foreigu currency are reported at the statement of financial position reporting date by
applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences arising from the
settlement of creditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at
which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or
expenses in the period in which they arise.

n) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part ofproperty, plant and
equipment.

Such borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being
acquired or constnrcted and borrowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when
construction of the asset is conplete. Further borrowing costs are charged to the
statement of financial performance.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

4 SUMMARY oF SIGNIFTCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

o) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert
control individually or jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or
vice versa. Members of key management are regarded as related parties and comprise
the directors, the CEO/principal and senior managers.

p) Serviceconcession errangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession ilrangements that it enters into in
determining the appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In
particular, where a private party contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity
recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls or regulates the services. The
operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide thern, and at
what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through
ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the
asset at the end of the arrangement. Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair
value. To the extent that an asset has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes
corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash consideration paid or received.

q) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits
on call and highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less,
which are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant
risk of changes in value. Bank account balances include amounts held at the Central
Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end of the financial year. For
the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also include short
term cash imprests and advances to authorized public officers and/or institutions which
were not surrendered or accounted for at the end ofthe financial year.

r) Comparative figures

Where necessiuy comparative figures for the previous financial year have been
amended or reconfigured to conform to the required changes in presentation.

s)Subsequent events

There have been no events subsequent to the financial period end with a significant
impact on the financial statements for the eight months period November iOZO to lO
June 2021.
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SIGNIFICAI\T
T]NCERTAINTY

JUDGMENTS AND SOURCES OF ESTIMATION

The preparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent
liabilitie-s, at the end of the reporting period. However, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in outcomes that require a material adjustment to thecarrying
amount of the asset or liability affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty
at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described
below. The Entity based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the
consolidated financial statements were prepared. However, existing circumstancesand
assumptions about future developments may change due to market changes or
circumstances arising beyond the control of the Entity. Such changes are reflected in the
assumptions when they occur. IPSAS 1.140

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to
inform potential future use and value from disposal:

The condition of the asset based on the assessment of experts employed by the Entity
The nafure of the asset, its susceptibility and adaptability to qhanges in technology and processes

The nature of the processes in which the asset is deployed

Availability of funding to replace the asset

Changes in the market in relation to the asset

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information
available. Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note 36.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to
settle the obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the
effect is material.

(There were no provisions for the period).
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Condnucd)

6. (I)TRANSFERS FROM NATIONAL GOVERNMENT MrNrsrRrEs

(b)TRANSIIERS FROM MINISTRIES, DEPARTMENTS AI{D AGENCIES

(Ensure that the arnount recorded above as having been received from the Ministry fully
reconciles to the amount recorded by the sending Ministry. An acknowledgement
note/receipt should be raised in favour of the sending Ministry. The details ofthe
reconciliation have been included under appendix IV)

Unconditiond grants
Capitation grants rc0 000
Operational grant 1,500,000 000
Other grants 000 000

1,500,000 000
Conditional grants
Library grant E00 )00
Hostels grant 000 )00
Administration block grant )00 000
La )00 000

facilities 000 000
Other organizational grants 000 000
Total govemment grants snd subsidies 1r500,000 000

Ministry/State
Department t- t,,Ministry 

IOOO boo boo Foo
Totel looo looo --looo loo@
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NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

7. GRANTS FROM DONORS AND DEVELOPMENT PARTNERS

Reconciliations of grants from donorc and development partners

8.

(The institution did not benefit from any grants from donors)

TRANSFERS FROM OTIIER LEVELS OF GOVERNMENT

9. PUBLIC CONTRIBUTIONS AND DONATIONS

[The institution did not benefit from public contributions and donations]

IICA- Research grant 0oo p00

World Bank grants looo p00

In-kind Donations looo p00

Other grants CIoo p00

Total grants from development
partners boo Ioo

Balance unspent at beginning of year p00 p00

Current year receipts p00 1000

Conditions met - transferred to revenue p00 looo
Conditions to be met - remain
liabilities [* ho,

Transfer from M. O.E(capitation) 000 000

Total Transfers 000 000

Public donations 0oo looo
Donations from local leadership 0oo Doo
Donations from religious institutions 1000 p00

Donations from alumni looo p00

Other donations looo p00

Total donations and sponsorchips 
IOOO boo

22



IKUTHA TECENICAL AI{D VOCATIONAL COLLEGE AI{NUAL REPORT AI{D
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGIIT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JT'NE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

10. RENDERING OF SERVICES

amount stated was realized from services rendered)

11. SALE OF G,OODS

(No sum was realized from sale of goods)

12. HIRE OF FACILITIES AND EQUIPMENT

There was no hire of facilities

13. FINANCE INCOME

Students fees incornc 932,992 Foo
Total revenue from the rendering ofservlces' 932,992 p00

Sale ofgoods
Sale of books 000 000
Sale ofpublications 000 000
Sale of farmproduce )00 000
Cafeteria )00 000
Other (include in line with your organization) )00 000
Total revenue from the sale of goods D00 000

Hire of facilities and equipment
Contingent rental )00 000
Operating lease revenue
Total 000 000

Cash investments and fixed deposits p00 Poo
Interest income from Treasury Bills Poo 0oo
Interest income from Treasury Bonds Foo looo
Interest debtors
Total finance income
(There was no amount realized from finance irrcome)
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NOTES TO THE FINAI{CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

14. OTI{ER INCOME

15. USE OF GOODS AIYD SERVICES

Insurance recoveries p00 p00

Consuhancy fees p00 p00

Incorre from sale oftender Doo p00

Services concession income P0o p00

Reimbursements and refunds 1000 p00

Graduation fees p00 l0o0
Miscellaneous (Speci&) p00 p00

Total other income 0oo p00

Teaching and learning materials t330t2 )00
Industrial attachment costs )00 )00
Travel upkeep & subsistence allowances 126,510 )00
Electricity, water and conservancy 74,603
Marketing and publicity 38,700 )00

52,355Telcphone, postages & internet sernices 000

Licenses and permits 13,130 000

Printing and stationery I18,819 000

Auditing, legal and other professional fees 000 000

Subscriptions to associations &professional
orsanizations (KATTI & others)

96,400

Skills development, ganres and sports 40,850 000

I10,570Management/stafftrai@
Other (Central admin. office& covid-I9
response e:rpenses)

62,570 000

Totel good and services 1,127,519 000
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NOYEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JTJNE 2021

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCHL STATEMENTS (Continued)

16. EMPLOYEE COSTS

17. REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

18. DEPRECIATION AI\[D AMORTIZATION EXPENSE

19. REPAIRS AND MAINTENAI\CE

Salaries and wages

11,000
costs 1t looo

Chairman's Honoraria Ito,ooo looo
Directors 00,000

t

Other allowances 0oo
Total director emoluments h 10,000 looo

and
assets

Investment carried at cost
Total reciation and

Property, Furniture and fittings 39,550 p00
Other 000 0oo
Total repairs and maintenance 39,550 0OO
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NOTES TO TIIE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

20. CONTRACTEDSERVICES

2I. GRANDS AND SI,JBSIDIES

22. FINAI\CE COSTS

*Borrowing costs that relatc to interest expense on acquisition of non- current assets and do not
qualify for Capitalization as per IPSAS 5: on borrowing costs should be included under this note.)

23. GAIN ON SALE OF ASSETS

Actuarial valuations 0oo 0oo
Investment valuations boo boo
Property valuations looo boo
Total contracted services looo looo

Community development 0oo Doo
Education initiatives and programs p00 p00

Social development p00 p00

Community trust looo p00

Sportine bodies p00 p00

Total grants and subsidies hoo looo

Bank leger fees and others charges B,ozo boo
Total finance costs P,ozo 0oo

:r):9r)-1021
N\lts

:01()-l0lt)
K \ltr

l)t'rcripliorr

looo
Property, plant and equipment c00 p00

Intangible {rssets 000 0oo
Other assets not capitalized )00 0oo
Totel gain on sale of assets 000 looo
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NOrtS TO THE FINAIYCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

24. UNREALIZ,ED GAIN ON FAIR VALUE IIWESTMENTS

25. IMPAIRMENT LOSS

26. CASH ArrD CASH EQUMLENTS

(The amount should agree with the closing and opening balances as included in the statement ofcash
flows)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

26(a).DETAILED ANALYSIS oF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

lnvestments at p00 looo
Totel gein' looo looo

and 0oo
Intangible assets boo Doo
Total impairment loss Poo boo

Current ac.count tp7,7g0 0oo
Others(speciff) cash at hand P3,133 0oo
Total cash and cash equivalents BO,lZl looo

:r)lt)-202 t

N Slrr
l()t9-lr):r)
KSlrs

l)csc ripl io rt

a I Current account
Kenya Commercial bank 57,790 )00

cash in hand 23,133 )00
Sub- total D00

Grand totel t0,923 000

l' irlutt'iltl ilrrl il rrl iorr hsltr\t'torrrrl rrtutrller hSlrr
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27. RECETVABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

27(t) Curtcnt Receivables from Erchange Trensections

NOTES TO TIIE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

27(b) Long- term Receivables from Erchenge Trensections

Curnentrcccivebler
Student debtors- l,27o,g5o 000

Rent debtors 000 000

000 000Consultancy debtors
000Other exchange debtors 000

Less: impairment allowance (000) (000)

Totel current receivables 1,270,950 000

lr)10-:01I
K\ltr

l0l()-l0l()
KSlrr

l)t'rcri;tliolt

Non-current receivebl6s
Refundable deposits 000 000

000 000Advance payments
)00Public organizations 000

Less: impairment allowance (000) lo00)
Totrl 000 000

Current portion transferred to current receivables (000) 000)
Totel non{urrent receivebles 000 000

000 000Totrl receivables
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27 (c) Reconciliation for Impeirment Allowence on Receivabler from Exchenge
Trensactionr

28. RECEryABLES FROM NON.EXCHA}IGE TRANSACTIONS

*Receivables on capitation grants is recognized for monies received after year endbut
relating to the year under review

2t O) Reconciliation for Impairment Allowence on Receivables from Non-Exchenge
Trensections

At the beginnilg ofthe year 000 000
Provisions during the year 000 )00
Recovered the (000) l0oo)
Write offs the (000) 1000)
At the end of the 000 000

Current receivables
000 000

*

other
donor

000 000
c00 000

transactions )00 000
Less: impairment allowance :000) [000)
Total current receivebles D00 000

At the beginning ofthe ycar 000 000
Additional the 000 000
Recovered the (000) (000)
Written off the 1000) [000)
At the end of the 000 000
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FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGET MONTHS PERIOD ,

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

29. IIIVENTORIES

30. INVESTMENTS

d) Shereholding in other entities

For investments in equity share listed under note 30 (c) above, list down the equity
investments under the following categories:

Consumable stores
Maintenance stores

Health unit stores

Electrical stores

materials stores

stores

Total
value

inventories at the lower of cost and net realizable

a) Investment in Treasury bilIs and bonds
Financial institution
CBK 000 000
CBK 000 000
Sub- totel 000 000

b) Investment with Financial Institutions/
Banks
Bank x 000 000
Bank y 000 000
Sub- totsl 000 000

c) investments
Equity/ shares in conpany xxx 000 000
Sub- total 000 000
Grand totel 000 000
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IKUTHA TECIINICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Valuation

Land and buildings were not yet valued as to date. Therefore, there is no any accumulated depreciation thus
the value remains at cost.

31 (b) Property, Plant and Equipment at Cost

If the freehold land, buildings and other assets were stated on the historical cost basis the amounts would be as

follows:

32. INTANGIBLE ASSETS-SOFTWARE

Land 300,000 100 100,000

Buildings 50,207,958 )00 50,207,958

Plant and machinery 100 000 )00

Motor vehicles, including motorcycles )00 )00 )00

Computers and related equipment +20,000 )00 +20,000

Offi ce equipment,.furniture, and fittings 192,280 )00 t92,280

Plant and equipment 561,350 )00 561,350

Total t1,6E1,58E )00 61',681,588

.\ccu nrrrlalc(l \ li\
I )e llrccirrl iolt

Krltr Krhs

(-osl

Krlts

Cost
At beginning of the year 000

Additions 7,300 000

At end of the year )00 000

Additionrintemal development )00 000

At end of the year )00 c00
Amortization snd impairment
At beginning of the year )00 )00
Amortization )00 )00
At end of the year )00 )00
Impairment loss 000 )00
At end of the year 000 )00

NBV 7,300 )00
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IKUTHA TECIINICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI.INE 2O2T

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

33. INVESTMENTPROPERTY

34.

(This note applies to investment property held at cost. For investment property held at fair value,

changes in fair value should go through the statement of financial performance).

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES FROM EXCHANGE TRANSACTIONS

35. REFUNDABLE DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS/STUDENTS

36. CURRENT PROVISIONS

Transfers from non -current

000 loooAt beginning of the year

)00 loooAdditions
(000) kooo)Disposal during the year

(000) kooo)Depreciation
(000) kooo)Impairment

000 loooAt end of the year

300 booIrade payables

9,980 0OOFees received in advance

300 booEmployee advances

000 DooIhird-party payments

000 looo)ther payables

9,980 booTotal'trade and other payables

Ir20-202I
KShs

2r)t e-201t)

hSltr
Dt'scri;ll iort

Consumer deposits p00

Caution money looo p00

Other refundable deposits looo p00

Total deposits looo p00

000000 000 000
Balance at the beginning of the
year ho,

000000 000 c00Additional Provisions Foo
r000)(000) :000) (000)Provision utilized Ioooy

000 000 000 000

000000 )00 000

l.c:rr c llolrttr ( it'll rritr ( )tlrt'l'
pror isiort 1lt'or iriott l'l'rtr iriottr 1lt'or iriott

KSlrs hSlr hslrs KShr
lolrtl
lr.\ltr

l )erc ri;ll i o lr

Total provisions
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE NTCTTT TVTONTHS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

37, FINANCE LEASE OBLIGATION

Maturity Analysis

Analyzed as:

38. DEFERRED INCOME

At the start ofthe
Discount lnterest on lease
Paid the
At end of the year

000

Year I

Year 2

Year 3

Year 4

Year 5 and onwards

Less: Uneamed interest 000

Current

Non- Current

Total

National government
lnternational funders

contributionsPublic and donations

Total deferred income
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JTINE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

The deferred income movement is as follows:

39. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGA.TIONS

Retirement benefit AsseU Liability

The entity does not operate a defined benefit scheme for all full-time employees from July 1,2020.

An actuarial valuation to fulfil the financial reporting disclosure requirements of IPSAS 39 was

not carried out as at 30s Jwre2021. No assumptions were made in the year.

Ill health

000 100 boo)00
Balance brought
forward

)00 booc00 000
Additions during
the year

[000) 000)(oo0) 000)
Transfers to
Capital fund

(000) 0oo)(000) :000)
Transfers to
income statement

|(000)(000)(000) :000)Other transfers

000 Ioo000 t00
Balance carried
forward

[Shs [strs [Sns [<Shs [Shs
Current benefit looo l0o0 lo00

boo looo boo boo boo
Non-current benefit

Total employee
benefits oblieat [oo boo hooboo looo

000 p00Discount rates
000 loooFuture lncreases
000 p00Future rncreases
000 p00

000 loooMortality (Post- retirement)
Mortality (Pre- retirement)

o00pooWithdrawals
000 100(

000 p0(Retirernent

35
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NorEs ro rHE FTNANCTA, r}:frffi',ir'JilffiXffE202t
Recognition of Retirement Benefit AsseU Liability

a) Amounts recognized under other gains/ [.osses in the statement of Financial performance:

b)Amounts recognized in the Statement of Financial position

Thc entity also contributes to the statutoly National Social sccur-ity Fund (I{SSF). This is adefined contribution scheme registered ,nd"r the National Social Security Act. The entity,sobligation under the scheme is limited to specific contributions legislated from time to time andis currently at KShs. 200 per employee per month. other man NSsr the entity ao"r rot tur"any other defined contribution scheme.

return on defined assets
Actuarial Iossesgains/ from mansmg changes

Actuarial
financial

arising fromO020changes ingains/ losses

Actuarial and losses arlgalns fromsmg expenence

Others
for restrictions theon benefitdefined setas

tRemeasuremen of the etn defined benefit liability

Present value of a
Fair value
Funded Statusl:6-6

on asset
Others
Net Asset or liability
o

arising from defined benefit
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. IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE.ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS F'ORTHE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOI)

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI.INE 2O2I

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

40. NON.CURRENTPROVISIONS

(NB: The current portion deducted in this note should tie to line on current portion transferred

from non- current provisions under note 34)

4I. BORROWINGS

4t 
^)ANALYSIS 

OF EXTERNAL AND DOMESTIC BORROWINGS

000 000100000 000
Balance at the beginning of
the year

000)00 000)00t00Additional Provisions

(000) :000)t000)t000) [000)Provision utilized

)00000 )00000c00
Change due to discount and

time value for money

[000)(000) (000)(000) (000)Less: Current portion

Total deferred income

c00Balance at of the
000External the
000Domestic the
(000)of extemal the

(000)Repayments of domestic borrowings during the
000)

D00Balance at end of the vear looo

External
100000'xxxloanDollar

100000
Sterling Pound denominated loan from
I )

t00000loanfromzzz ,
Euro
Domestic Borrowin

000000KCBloan
000000Bankloan
000)00loan from Consolidated Bank
000000Total balance at end ofthe Year

:tl
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE BiCITi iVTb}THS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
4Ib) BREAKDOWN OF LONG- AND SHORT.TERM BORROWINGS

42.

43 CASH GENERATED FROM OPEBATIONS

Net cash flow from operating activities

(NB: the total of this statement should tie to note,42 totars. current portion of borrowings are thoseborrowings that are payable within oo. y"", oi the next fi."r;i"tl;;i. aoaition"r disclosures on terms ofborrowings, nature ofborrowingr, ,".u.ity and interest ,"tu. ,lo,ira ie disclosed).
SERYICE CONCESSION ARRANGEMENTS

I
ash flow section on

Short term current
term

TotaI

Fair value of
under PPE

concessron assets recognizedservice

to dateAccumulated
Net amount

liability beginningService concesslon at of the year
ervlS ce concess on revenue

Service concesslon liabil at end theofity year

for:
41

000)

Non-cash grants received
Contributed assets

Gains and losses on
:II butio(- n on to SlONS onP1'o\/1 receivable e

tributionCon to allowancelmpalrment
Finance lncome

wor Capitalking ustmentsadj
Increase ln tnventory
Increase in receivables

Increase in deferred mcome
Increase in payables

1nIncrease receivedpayments ln advance

Impainnent

of assets

Finance cost

('l hc rtrtai ol fhis sta tement should tie to the c

38
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONA! COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANI)
FINA}ICIAL STATEMENTS FORTHE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JTJNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEN/ffiNT

The entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

and effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management

programmes focuses on unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to

mirimize the potential advirse effect oisuch risks on its performanie by setting acceptable

levels of risk. The company does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that

credit is only extended to customers with an established credit history'

The entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below:

(i) Credit risk

The entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparty will be unable to

pay amounts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and

deposits with banks, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial

investments.

Management assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial

posiiion, past experience and other factors. lndividual risk limits are set based on internal or

ixternal assessment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in

the statement of financial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated

. by the company's management based on prior experience and their assessment of the 
.

current economic environment.

The carrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing

the entity's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any

collateral obtained is made up as follows:

(NB: The totals column should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in

theentity's statement of financial pcsition)

000 c00000
)00Receivables from exchange

transactions

c00000
100Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
t00 000000t00Bank balances

000000 000000Total
At 30 June 2021

000)00
000

c00
Receivables from exchange

transactions

000c00 t00
000Receivables from non-exchange

transactions
000100000 c00Bank balances

000 D00000 000Total

39



a

IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND.FINAi\CIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Conrinued)
aa. fU.t.tNCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conrinued)

(i) Credit risk (continued)

The customers under the fully performing category arre paylng their debts as they continuetrading. The credit risk associaied with tn-"." ri"i.rJl"s i, minimal and the allowance for- 
uncollectible amounts that the companyhas recogni zediitthe financial statements isconsidered adequate to cover at y p-ot"rtralry irreJoverabre amounts.
The entity does not have a significant concentration of credit risk on amounts due.

The board of directors sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays downparameters within which the various aspects of ciedit risk management are operated.
(ii) Liquidity risk management

ultimate responsibility for liquidity.risk management rests with the entity,s directors, whohave built an appropriate riquioiiy ri.t -*ug"li"r-it*"*ork for the management of theentity's short' mediunr and long-ierm *q.; *a iiquiairy management requirements. Theentity manages liquidity risk through continrius .orito.irrg of forecasts and actual cashflows.

' The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivativefina,cial liabilities by their remaining 
"ortru.tuui maturities at the reporti,g date. Theamounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances duewithin l2 months equal their carrying balances, u"tt" i*pu.t"iJir""rrti"rg i. notsignificant.

At 30 June 2020
Trade 000

c00Current portion of 000
000

Provisions 000 )00Deferred rncome
000

TotaI
benefit 000 000 t00

At 30 June 2021
Trade 9,990 000 9,990Current portion of

000 000

Deferred income

)00
000

benefit on
Total 9,990 000 980
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(iii) Market risk

The entity has put in place an internai audit frrnction to assist it in assessing the risk faced

by the .riity o, an orgoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its

internal accounting and operational controls.

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices, such as interest rate, equity

prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the entity's income or the value of its

Lolding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management is to manage

and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing the '

retum. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit and Risk

Management Committee.

The entity's Finance Departrnent is responsible for the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management

Committee) and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies.

There has been no change to the entity's exposure to market risks or the manner in which it
manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign bun'ency risk

The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through

purchases of goods and services that are done in currencies other than the local

".ro"r"y. 
lnvoices denominated in foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the

date of the invoice and conversion at the time of payment is done using the prevailing

exchange rate.

The carrying amount of the entity's foreign currency denominated monetary assets and

monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period ale as follows:

The entity manages foreign exchange risk form future commercial transactions and

recognizid asseti and liabilities by projecting for expected sales proceeds and matching

the same with expected payments.

At 30 June 2021
000)00 t00Financial assets (investments, cash,

Liabilities

debtors)

100100 100Trade and other payables
)00t00100

000 000000Net foreign crurency asseV(liability)
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR TIIE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2I

NOTES TO TIIE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)
44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Conrinued)

Market risk (Continued)

a. Foreign curency risk (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

b.Interest rate risk

The following table demonstrates the effect on the company,s statement ofcomprehensive income on applyrng the sensitivity for areasonaute possible change inthe exchange rate of the three mairitransaction currencies, with all other variablesheld constant' The reverse would also occur irtn" r"rryu dhiriing appreciated with allother variables held constant.

lnterest rate risk is the risk that the entitv's financiar condition may be adverselyaffected as a result of changes in interesirate levels. The company,s interesl rate risk
Tt".t from bank deposits. ihi. 

"*pos.s 
the company to cash ilow interest rate risk.The interest rate risk exposure arisls mainly from ini"."rt .ui" movements on thecompany's deposits.

Management of interest rate risk
To manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavored to bank with institutionsthat offer favorable interest rates.

debtors

At 30 June 2021

Financial assets c00 100

Trade and other c00 000 000
000 )00 000

cr.[Tenc 000 000 000

Euro 0%
USD 0%
2021
Euro 0%
USD 0% 000 100
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGF'I ANNUAL REPORf, ANI)
FINAI\ICIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JIINE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

44 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

(iii) Market risk (Continued)

b) lnterest rate risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a

sensitivity analysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined

rate shifts. The sensitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other

variables, in particular foreign exchange rates, remain constant. The analysis has not

been performed bearing in mind that2020l202l was the base year.

iii) Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the entity's ability to

continue as a going concern. The entity capital structure comprises of the following funds

)00)00Revaluation reserve
t00)00Retained
100looCapital res-erve

000000Total funds

000000Total
(000)(000)Less: cash and bank balances

000000Net debt/(excess cash and cash

equivalents)
)0%00%Gearing
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDF'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTH' PNIiOJ" ^'"
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

45. RELATED PARTY BALANCES
Nafure of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties'who have ability to exercisecontrol or exercise significant influence ou", it, operating and financial decisions. Relatedparties include management personnel, their urro"iut"r-uid close family members.
Government of Kenya

The Government of Kenya i's the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the entity,s equityinterest' The Government of Kenya has provided rrr gu-ani";s to ail long--1gr; j;;"r, of the entity,both domestic and external. Othei related parties incltfte:
i) The National Government;
ii) The parent Ministry;
iii) Keymanagement;
iv) Board of directors;

The transactions and barances with related parties during the year are as

Total

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

with related

000

)00
1000

i00
000

100

ES

to
and to

Total

Sales to related

Income from
ater to Govt

b Purchases from related
Purchases from KPLC

of to Govt

Total

s

water serylce

)00

vernmentb Grants sferslTran fhefrom
National Govt

GovermnentGrants from

00

incurred on behalf of
for xxxsalanes and

and services for xxx

tion
emolumentsrectors'

D00
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47.

IKU,IHA TECHNICALAND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT A}[D
FINANCIALSTATEMENTSFoRTHEEIGHTM0NTHSPERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JI.]NE 2021

SBcnmNr INFoRMATIoN

(Where an organisation operates in different geographical regions or in departments, IPSAS

i8 or, r.gaenial reponing requires an entity to present segmental information of each

g"og.upf,i. region or departmint to enable users understand the entity's performance and

allocation of resources to different segments)

CONTINGENT ASSETS AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

ConIingenlAuell

Cqr$rsert.IliaDiltlisr

(Give details)

48. CAPITALCOMMITMENTS

QllB: Capital commi tments are commitments to be carried out in the next financial year and are

may be those that have been
contracted or those alreadY

disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments

authorized by the entity but at the end of the year had not been

assets
000 )00lnsurance reimbursements

)00000from determination of court casesAssets
100000Reimbursable and
)00)00Others
000D00Total

Contin liabilities
Court case against the

Bank in favor of
C ontingent li abilities ari sing from contracts
PPPs

including

Others
Total

Authorized for
Authorized and contracted for
Total

contracted for and ongoing)
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IKUTHA TECHMCAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2021

NOTES TO TIIE rrNaNcrar, STATEMENTS (Continued)

49. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITY

Deferred tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using theenacted tax rate, currently 30% The net deferred tax liability at year end is athibutable to theitems:

IIn ordinary crrcumstances public sector entities under IPSAS are not expected to pay taxes. Howeverin specific cases where this is applicable an organrzati on ls supposed to seek guidance on accountingfor income taxes from IAS 12)

50. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

There were no materiar adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

ULTIMATE AND HOLDING ENTITY
Ikutha Technical and Vocational college is a state corporation/ or a Semi- AutonomousGovernment Agency under the Ministry of Educatior. i r rrii-ute parent is the Government ofKenya.

52. CURRENCY
The financial statements are presented in Kenya shilrings (Kshs).

51.

000

)00)

000

allowances

and

statement

atBalance ofend the

Tax ses carried
for

Net deferred tax

The movement on the taxdeferred Iaccount ass follow

Balance at of thebeginning year

to revaluation reserve
ln or

Unrealized
Revaluation

000
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT AND
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTIIS PERIOD

NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2I

APPENDIX 1: PROGRESS ON FOLLOW UP OF AUDITOR RECOMMENDATIONS

The following is the sunmary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments

that were provided to the auditor.

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report;

(ii) Obtain the "lssue/Obseryation" and "management comments", required above, from final

extemal audit report that is signed by Management;

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons

within your entity responsible for implementation of each issue;

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or "Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to

National Treasury.

Accounting Officer

Name lr,, L[,.,r,-J"

Signature

Date.

4
::'11: L :

N/A N/AN/AN/AN/A

llcl crclt cc
\o. ott tlte
c r I t't'tt it I

rurrrlil llcport
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llcsolr ctl )
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rrreli'rr lttc
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cr;lccl lhe
irrrrclo ht'
rcrolr t'd )
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IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDFINANCIAL STATEMENTS F'OR THE EIGHT ]\{O-NTHS PERIOD
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APPENDIX II: PROJECTS IMPLEMENTED BY THE ENTITY

Projects

Projects implemented by the state corporation/ SAGA Funded by development partneis

Status of Projects completion

$#ilil'rt"ffi:tlT;;'r*ect completion at the end of each quarter, ie total costs incurred, stage

I N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A2 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A

St'Jt:rt'trlc tlotror
rcllorling
t'er;rril'crl :l\ I)(,r
I ltt, rlolror'
it Ll l'('(,nl e n l
(\ cr. \o)

( 'olr so lirl:r t t.rl
ilt llrcse
linulrcirrl
\lltl('rIL.nl\
( \ t'r \o)

l'r'oit,cl t il le l)oltrrrl'ro.icc l
\ u rrr lrt'r

l'e t'iotl'
tl u l':rl io n

I)orro t'

co nutt il trrclt t

I N/A

2

3

'l ol:rl

Jrroit,cl
( orl

'l oltrI
erJleltrlilurt
Io tlrrlt,

(.orn;lltlio rr

",, lo (llll('
Sottret.r ol'
I rur rlr

l'ro.it,c I llrrrlget \cturrl

48



,rl

IKUTHA TECHNICAL AND VOCATIONAL COLLEGE ANNUAL REPORT ANDF'INANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE EIGHT MONTHS PERIOD
NOVEMBER 2O2O TO 30 JUNE 2O2I

APPENDIX III: INTER-ENTITY TRANSFERS

Finance Officer
IkuthaTVC

Sign

Head ofAccounting Unit
Accounting Offrcer

Fr 02 I
Grants

Break down of Transfers from the State Department of Education

a.

I

I

Bank Statement
Datq

Amount (KShs)

s00 000

500,000
500,000

I

b
2020-2021

Grants

Bank Statement
Date

Total

000

000

000
000

lndicate the Fy to which
tne anounts retate

c
2020-2021

Direct Pa

Bank Statement
Date

000

00
00
00

I

2020-2021
Donor

Bank Statement Amount (KShs)

00
00
00

I

w

Mini
amounts have Ied with the

000I

I

he adr

Total

to and

_4,
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